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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 16-CV-21301-GAYLES
ECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
V.

ARIEL QUIROS,

WILLIAM STENGER,

JAY PEAK, INC,,

Q RESORTS, INC,,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES L.P.,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES PHASE Il L.P.,

JAY PEAK MANAGEMENT, INC.,

JAY PEAK PENTHOUSE SUITES L.P.,

JAY PEAK GP SERVICES, INC,,

JAY PEAK GOLF AND MOUNTAIN SUITES L.P.,
JAY PEAK GP SERVICES GOLF, INC,,

JAY PEAK LODGE AND TOWNHOUSES L.P.,
JAY PEAK GP SERVICES LODGE, INC.,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES STATESIDE L.P.,
JAY PEAK GP SERVICES STATESIDE, INC,,
JAY PEAK BIOMEDICAL RESEARCH PARK L.P.,
ANnC BIO VERMONT GP SERVICES, LLC,

Defendants, and

JAY CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INC,,
GSI OF DADE COUNTY, INC,,

NORTH EAST CONTRACT SERVICES, INC,,
Q BURKE MOUNTAIN RESORT, LLC,

Relief Defendants.
/

DEFENDANT, ARIEL QUIROS’S UNOPPOSED SECOND MOTION
FOR LEAVE TO AMEND ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

Defendant, Ariel Quiros (“Defendant™), by and through undersigned counsel, pursuant to Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 15(a)(2), hereby serves his Unopposed Second Motion for Leave to Amend

his Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Amended Complaint (ECF # 267), and states:
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INTRODUCTION

Defendant filed his first Amended Answer to Amended Complaint on January 11, 2017
(ECF #267). The Amended Answer sets forth eight (8) affirmative defenses. On February 1, 2017,
Plaintiff, the Securities and Exchange Commission (herein “Plaintiff” or “SEC”), filed a Motion to
Strike Ariel Quiros’s Affirmative Defenses (ECF #278). The Motion to Strike is ripe for
disposition.

Counsel for Defendant and for the Plaintiff have since conferred regarding the Motion to
Strike and, as a result of those discussions, have agreed that Defendant may amend his Affirmative
Defenses to withdraw many of the defenses that are the subject of the Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike
and to amend others without prejudice to the Plaintiff’s right to thereafter file a renewed motion to
strike regarding any of the remaining Affirmative Defenses. Therefore, Defendant now seeks leave
to file a Second Amended Answer and Affirmative Defenses setting forth amended versions of
three of the eight original affirmative defenses with the understanding that the Plaintiff has not
waived its right to move to strike the remaining three affirmative defenses.

THE THREE REMAINING AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES IN THE AMENDED ANSWER

Of the eight affirmative defenses asserted in the Amended Answer to the Amended
Complaint, Defendant Quiros seeks leave to amend to assert amended versions of three affirmative
defenses: (1) Statute of Limitations; (2) Reliance on the Advice of Professionals; and (3)
Contribution and Set-Off (previously Defendant Quiros’s Sixth Affirmative Defense.

Defendant Quiros’s proposed Second Amended Answer and Affirmative Defenses is

attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
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FEDERAL RULE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 15(b)(2)

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 15(b)(2) provides that a party may amend its pleadings with
the opposing party’s written consent or with leave of court, which should be freely given when
justice so requires.

As indicated above, Defendant’s Motion is unopposed, as the Plaintiff has agreed that
Defendant may amend his affirmative defenses to withdraw five of the eight previously asserted
affirmative defenses and to amend the three remaining affirmative defenses. Granting Defendant
Quiros leave to amend as requested herein will significantly narrow the issues in the instant lawsuit
and will avoid unnecessary waste of the Court’s time and resources ruling on a motion to strike
defenses which Defendant Quiros has agreed to withdraw. Therefore, the interests of justice favor
granting leave to amend as requested herein.

Should this Court grant the instant Motion and permit Defendant Quiros leave to amend his
Affirmative Defenses to the Amended Complaint, then Defendant Quiros respectfully submits that
the pending Motion to Strike Affirmative Defenses (ECF # 278) will be moot.

CERTIFICATION OF CONFERENCE PURSUANT TO LOCAL RULE 7.1(a)(3)

Pursuant to Southern District of Florida Local Rule 7.1(a)(3), undersigned counsel for
Defendant Quiros certifies that they have conferred with counsel for the Plaintiff and are authorized
to represent that Plaintiff does not oppose the relief requested herein.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, for all of the reasons set forth above, Defendant Ariel Quiros respectfully
requests that the Court Grant the instant Motion and permit Defendant Quiros leave to amend his
Amended Answer to the Amended Complaint as set forth above and in Exhibit 1 hereto, without

prejudice to Plaintiff’s right to move to strike the remaining amended affirmative defenses.
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Respectfully Submitted,

DAMIAN & VALORI LLP

1000 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1020
Miami, Florida 33131

Telephone: 305-371-3960
Facsimile: 305-371-3965

/sl Melissa D. Visconti

Melissa Damian Visconti

Florida Bar No. 0068063

Email: mviscontimailto:@dvllp.com

Melanie E. Damian
Florida Bar No. 99392
Email: mdamian@dvllp.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
| HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served via e-

mail via CM/ECF, on this 9"" day of June, 2017, to all counsel of record.

/s Melissa Damian Visconti
Melissa Damian Visconti
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EXHIBIT 1

(Second Amended Answer to Amended Complaint
For Injunctive and Other Relief)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 16-CV-21301-Gayles

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
V.

ARIEL QUIROS, WILLIAM STENGER,

JAY PEAK, INC,,

Q RESORTS, INC,,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES L.P.,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES PHASE Il L.P.,

JAY PEAK MANAGEMENT, INC.,

JAY PEAK PENTHOUSE SUITES L.P.,

JAY PEAK GP SERVICES, INC,,

JAY PEAK GOLF AND MOUNTAIN SUITES L.P.,
JAY PEAK GP SERVICES GOLF, INC.,

JAY PEAK LODGE AND TOWNHOUSES L.P.,
JAY PEAK GP SERVICES LODGE, INC,,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES STATESIDE L.P.,
JAY PEAK GP SERVICES STATESIDE, INC,,
JAY PEAK BIOMEDICAL RESEARCH PARK L.P.,
ANnC BIO VERMONT GP SERVICES, LLC,

Defendants,

and

JAY CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INC,,
GSI1 OF DADE COUNTY, INC,,

NORTH EAST CONTRACT SERVICES, INC,,
Q BURKE MOUNTAIN RESORT, LLC,

Relief Defendants.

SECOND AMENDED ANSWER TO AMENDED COMPLAINT
FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER RELIEF

Defendant Ariel Quiros (“Quiros™), by his attorneys, hereby provides the following

Second Amended Answer to the Amended Complaint of the Securities and Exchange
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Commission (“SEC”):

. INTRODUCTION*

1. Answering Paragraph 1, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
2. Answering Paragraph 2, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
3. Answering Paragraph 3, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
4, Answering Paragraph 4, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
5. Answering Paragraph 5, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
6. Answering Paragraph 6, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
7. Answering Paragraph 7, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
8. Answering Paragraph 8, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
9. Answering Paragraph 9, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

10. Answering Paragraph 10, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

1. DEFENDANTS AND RELIEE DEFENDANTS
A. Defendants

11.  Answering Paragraph 11, Quiros admits the allegations therein, except denies
that “Defendants raised money” and denies the allegations of the last sentence of Paragraph
11.

12. Answering Paragraph 12, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
Q Resorts is a Delaware corporation with offices in Miami, Florida and the 100% owner of Jay

Peak and admits that Quiros is the sole owner, officer and director of Q Resorts.

! For ease of reference, Quiros has reproduced the headings of the Amended Complaint. To the

extent the headings contain allegations, Quiros denies them.
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13. Answering Paragraph 13, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
he resides in Key Biscayne, Florida and that he is the sole owner, officer and director of Q Resorts.

14.  Answering Paragraph 14, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

15.  Answering Paragraph 15, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Hotel Suites L.P. is a
Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Jay, Vermont, admits that Suites
Phase I raised money to build a hotel, and admits that the hotel is completed and operating. Quiros
lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of the allegation that between December
2006 and May 2008, Suites Phase | raised $17.5 million from 35 investors through an EB-5
offering of limited partnership interests. Quiros denies any remaining allegations in this paragraph.

16.  Answering Paragraph 16, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Hotel Suites Phase Il L.P.
is a Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Jay, Vermont, admits that
Hotel Phase Il raised money to build a hotel, an indoor water park, an ice rink, and a golf club
house, and admits that construction on all these projects is complete and they are operating. Quiros
lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of the allegation that between March 2008
and January 2011, Hotel Phase Il raised $75 million from 150 investors through an EB-5 offering
of limited partnership interests. Quiros denies any remaining allegations in this paragraph.

17.  Answering Paragraph 17, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Management, Inc. is a
Vermont corporation which is the general partner of Suites Phase | and Hotel Phase 11, and admits
that Stenger was the company’s president. Quiros denies any remaining allegations in this
paragraph.

18.  Answering Paragraph 18, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Penthouse Suites L.P. is a

Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Jay, Vermont, admits that
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Penthouse Phase I1l raised money to build a 55-unit “penthouse suites” hotel and an activities
center, including a bar and restaurant, and admits that construction is complete and the facilities
are operating. Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of the allegation
that between July 2010 and October 2012, Penthouse Phase Il raised $32.5 million from 65
investors through an EB-5 offering of limited partnership interests. Quiros denies any remaining
allegations in this paragraph.

19.  Answering Paragraph 19, Quiros admits that Jay Peak GP Services, Inc. is a
Vermont corporation and the general partner of Penthouse Phase Ill. Qurios lacks sufficient
knowledge or information as to the truth of the remaining allegations of Paragraph 19, and on that
basis denies them.

20.  Answering Paragraph 20, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Golf and Mountain Suites
L.P. is a Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Jay, Vermont, admits
that Golf and Mountain Phase IV raised money to build “golf cottage” duplexes, a wedding chapel,
and other facilities, and admits that construction is complete, and the facilities are operating.
Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of the allegation that between
December 2010 and November 2011, Golf and Mountain Phase IV raised $45 million from 90
investors through an EB-5 offering of limited partnership interests. Quiros denies any remaining
allegations in this paragraph.

21.  Answering Paragraph 21, Quiros admits that Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Inc. is a
Vermont corporation and the general partner of Golf and Mountain Phase IV. Quiros lacks
sufficient knowledge or information as to the remaining allegations in Paragraph 21, and on that

basis denies them.



Case 1:16-cv-21301-DPG Document 339-1 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/09/2017 Page 6 of 42

22.  Answering Paragraph 22, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Lodge and Townhouses L.P.
is @ Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Jay Vermont, admits that
Lodge and Townhouses Phase V raised money to build vacation rental townhouses, vacation rental
cottages, a café, and a parking garage, and admits that construction is complete and the facilities
are operating. Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of the allegation
that between May 2011 and November 2012, Lodge and Townhouses Phase V raised $45 million
from 90 investors through an EB-5 offering of limited partnership interests. Quiros denies any
remaining allegations in this paragraph.

23.  Answering Paragraph 23, Quiros admits that Jay Peak GP Services Lodge, Inc. isa
Vermont corporation and the general partner of Lodge and Townhouses Phase V. Quiros lacks
sufficient knowledge or information as to the remaining allegations in Paragraph 23, and on that
basis denies them.

24.  Answering Paragraph 24, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Hotel Suites Stateside L.P.
is a Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Jay, Vermont, and admits
that Stateside Phase VI raised money to build a hotel, 84 vacation rental cottages, a guest recreation
center, and a medical center. Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of
the remaining allegations in this paragraph, and on that basis denies them.

25. Answering Paragraph 25, Quiros admits that Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Inc.
is a Vermont corporation and the general partner of Stateside. Quiros lacks knowledge as to the
remaining allegations of Paragraph 25, and on that basis denies them.

26.  Answering Paragraph 26, Quiros admits that Jay Peak Biomedical Research Park
L.P. is a Vermont limited partnership with its principal place of business in Newport, Vermont,

and admits that “Biomedical Phase VI11” raised money to construct a biomedical research facility.
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Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to the truth of the allegation that since
November 2012, Biomedical Phase VII has raised approximately $83 million from 166 investors
through an EB-5 offering of limited partnership interests. Quiros denies the remaining allegations
of Paragraph 26.

27.  Answering Paragraph 27, Quiros admits that AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, LLC
is a Vermont limited liability company and the general partner of Biomedical Phase VII, and
admits that Quiros and William Stenger are its only members. Quiros denies any remaining
allegations in this paragraph.

B. Relief Defendants

28.  Answering Paragraph 28, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except lacks
knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief about the truth of the allegations concerning
the state of incorporation of JCM, whether it is listed as terminated, and the identities of the officers
and directors of JCM.

29.  Answering Paragraph 29, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
GSl is a Florida corporation and that Quiros is the owner and sole officer and director of GSI.

30.  Answering Paragraph 30, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
William Kelly served as Jay Peak’s COO and lacks knowledge or information sufficient to form
a belief about the truth of the allegations of the first sentence of Paragraph 30.

31.  Answering Paragraph 31, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
Q Burke Mountain Resort, LLC (“Q Burke”) is a Florida limited liability company headquartered
in Miami, admits and avers that Quiros is the majority owner of Q Burke, and admits that Q Burke

is also the owner of the Burke Mountain Resort located in East Burke, VVermont.
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1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

32. Answering Paragraph 32, Quiros admits that the SEC alleges that the Court has
jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and otherwise
denies the allegations therein.

33. Answering Paragraph 33, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
Q Resorts owns Jay Peak.

34. Answering Paragraph 34, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
he had communications with Raymond James.

35.  Answering Paragraph 35, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except lacks
knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief about the truth of the allegations of the last
sentence and admits that William Kelly maintains a residence in Florida.

36. Answering Paragraph 36, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

V. THE EB-5 PROGRAM

37.  Answering Paragraph 37, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

38.  Answering Paragraph 38, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

39.  Answering Paragraph 39, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

40.  Answering Paragraph 40, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

V. THE JAY PEAK EB-5 OFFERINGS

41.  Answering Paragraph 41, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
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Biomedical Phase VI involves construction of a biomedical research facility and the other limited
partnerships focused on ski resort and related facilities, such as hotels, lodges, condominiums,
recreation and meeting facilities, and restaurants and cafes.

42.  Answering Paragraph 42, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

43.  Answering Paragraph 43, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except lacks
sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations concerning
the meetings and conversations engaged in by Stenger.

44.  Answering Paragraph 44, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

45.  Answering Paragraph 45, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

46.  Answering Paragraph 46, Quiros refers to the alleged use of proceeds pages for
their contents and otherwise states that he lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form a
belief as to the truth of the allegations of Paragraph 46.

47. Answering Paragraph 47, Quiros refers to the alleged “Source and Use of
Investor Funds” page for its contents and otherwise states that he lacks sufficient knowledge or
information to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations of Paragraph 47.

48.  Answering Paragraph 48, Quiros refers to the alleged offering materials and
partnership agreements for their contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 48,
except admits that Stenger is the sole managing member of each general partner for each project
other than Biomedical Phase VIl and that Quiros and Stenger are co-managing members of the
general partner for the Biomedical Phase VII project.

49.  Answering Paragraph 49, Quiros refers to the alleged offering materials and
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partnership agreements for their contents and otherwise lacks sufficient knowledge or information
to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations of Paragraph 49.

50. Answering Paragraph 50, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

51.  Answering Paragraph 51, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits the
allegations of the first sentence of Paragraph 51.

52.  Answering Paragraph 52, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

53. Answering Paragraph 53, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

54.  Answering Paragraph 54, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

55. Answering Paragraph 55, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
Quiros’s former son-in-law worked at Raymond James.

56. Answering Paragraph 56, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

VI. THE DEFENDANTS FRAUDULENTLY USED INVESTOR FUNDS
T O FINANCE QUIRO S’ PURCHASE OF JAY PEAK

57.  Answering Paragraph 57, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations therein, except admits that MSSI previously owned Jay
Peak.

58.  Answering Paragraph 58, Quiros refers to the alleged stock transfer agreement for
its date and contents and the purchase price of the stock of Jay Peak and otherwise lacks sufficient
knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations of Paragraph 58.

59.  Answering Paragraph 59, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

60.  Answering Paragraph 60, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
9
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the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

61. Answering Paragraph 61, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

62. Answering Paragraph 62, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

63.  Answering Paragraph 63, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

64.  Answering Paragraph 64, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

65.  Answering Paragraph 65, Quiros avers that the letter speaks for itself, and otherwise
denies the allegations of Paragraph 65.

66.  Answering Paragraph 66, Quiros avers that the letter speaks for itself, and otherwise
denies the allegations of Paragraph 66.

67. Answering Paragraph 67, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

68.  Answering Paragraph 68, Quiros denies the allegations of the first sentence and
otherwise lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations therein.

69.  Answering Paragraph 69, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

70.  Answering Paragraph 70, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

71.  Answering Paragraph 71, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

72.  Answering Paragraph 72, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

73.  Answering Paragraph 73, Quiros denies the allegations therein,

74.  Answering Paragraph 74, Quiros refers to the alleged “Source and Use of Investor
Funds” documents for its contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 74.

75.  Answering Paragraph 75, Quiros refers to the alleged “Estimated and Projected

10
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Cost of Development” document for its contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph
75.

76. Answering Paragraph 76, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

7. Answering Paragraph 77, Quiros refers to the relevant partnership agreements for
their contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 77.

VII. IMPROPER USE OF INVESTOR FUNDS FOR MARGIN L OANS

78. Answering Paragraph 78, Qurios denies the allegations therein.

79.  Answering Paragraph 79, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

80. Answering Paragraph 80, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations of the first sentence and denies the allegations of the
second sentence.

81. Answering Paragraph 81, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations therein, except denies the allegations of the third sentence
and denies that Quiros was given complete control over the funds in question.

82.  Answering Paragraph 82, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information as to
the truth of the allegations therein and on that basis denies them.

83.  Answering Paragraph 83, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

84.  Answering Paragraph 84, Quiros refers to the alleged use of proceeds pages and
partnership agreements for their contents, lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form a
belief as to the truth of the allegations concerning what Stenger told investors, and otherwise denies
the allegations of Paragraph 84.

85.  Answering Paragraph 85, Quiros refers to the alleged credit agreement for its

11
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contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 85.

86. Answering Paragraph 86, Quiros refers to the alleged credit agreement for its
contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 86.

87. Answering Paragraph 87, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

88.  Answering Paragraph 88, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except lacks
sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations concerning
what Stenger authorized.

89.  Answering Paragraph 89, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except lacks
sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations concerning
what Stenger authorized.

90. Answering Paragraph 90, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations therein, excepts denies such allegations to the extent that
they allege that he engaged in any wrongdoing.

91.  Answering Paragraph 91, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations therein, except denies that he commingled investor funds.

92.  Answering Paragraph 92, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

93.  Answering Paragraph 93, Quiros refers to the alleged credit agreement for its
contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 93.

94.  Answering Paragraph 94, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

95.  Answering Paragraph 95, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations of the first sentence and otherwise denies the allegations

of Paragraph 95.

12
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Vil MISREPRESENTATIONS AND OMISSIONS IN PHASES 11-VI
A._Hotel Phase 11

96.  Answering Paragraph 96, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

97.  Answering Paragraph 97, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

98.  Answering Paragraph 98, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form
a belief as to the truth of the allegations therein, except denies that he improperly used investor
funds.

B. Penthouse Phase 111

99.  Answering Paragraph 99, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

100. Answering Paragraph 100, Quiros avers that the Penthouse Phase Il use of
proceeds document speaks for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 100.

101.  Answering Paragraph 101, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

102.  Answering Paragraph 102, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

C._Golf and Mountain Phase 1V

103. Answering Paragraph 103, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

104. Answering Paragraph 104, Quiros avers that the Golf and Mountain Phase IV use
of proceeds document speaks for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 104.

105.  Answering Paragraph 105, Quiros avers that the Golf and Mountain Phase IV use
of proceeds document speaks for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 105.

106.  Answering Paragraph 106, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

D_L nd Townh Phase V
107.  Answering Paragraph 107, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

108.  Answering Paragraph 108, Quiros avers that the Lodge and Townhouses Phase V

13
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use of proceeds document speaks for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph
108.

109. Answering Paragraph 109, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

110.  Answering Paragraph 110, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

E. Stateside Phase VI

111.  Answering Paragraph 111, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

112.  Answering Paragraph 112, Quiros avers that the Stateside Phase V1 use of proceeds
document speaks for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 112.

113.  Answering Paragraph 113, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

114.  Answering Paragraph 114, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

115.  Answering Paragraph 115, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

IX. MISREPRESENTATIONS AND OMISSIONS IN BIOMEDICAL PHASE VIl
A. Misrepresentations an missions About the FDA Approval Pr

116. Answering Paragraph 116, Quiros refers to the offering documents for Biomedical
Phase V11 for the nature of the project and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 116.

117.  Answering Paragraph 117, Quiros refers to the alleged original offering materials
for their contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 117.

118.  Answering Paragraph 118, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

119.  Answering Paragraph 119, Quiros lacks sufficient knowledge or information to
form a belief as to the truth of the allegations therein, except denies such allegations insofar as
relate to what Quiros supposedly knew and/or was aware of.

120. Answering Paragraph 120, Quiros refers to the alleged information sheet and
offering documents for their contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 120.

121.  Answering Paragraph 121, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except lacks
14
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sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations concerning
what Stenger knew.

122.  Answering Paragraph 122, Quiros denies that the amended offering materials
relating to Biomedical Phase VII contained any untrue or misleading statements and otherwise
states that he lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations of Paragraph 122.

123.  Answering Paragraph 123, Quiros denies the allegations therein as they relate to
him and otherwise states that he lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of Paragraph 123.

B. Baseless Revenue Projections

124.  Answering Paragraph 124, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

125.  Answering Paragraph 125, Quiros avers that the offering documents speak for
themselves and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 125.

126. Answering Paragraph 126, Quiros avers that the offering documents speak for

themselves and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 126.

C. Further Misrepresentations and Misappropriation of Phase V11 Investor Money

127.  Answering Paragraph 127, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

128.  Answering Paragraph 128, Quiros avers that the use of proceeds document speaks
for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 128.

129. Answering Paragraph 129, Quiros avers that the Phase VII limited partnership
agreement speaks for itself, and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 129.

130.  Answering Paragraph 130, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
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1. Paying Off Margin Loan IV

131.  Answering Paragraph 131, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
132.  Answering Paragraph 132, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
133.  Answering Paragraph 133, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

2. Taxes To The IRS And The State of Vermont

134.  Answering Paragraph 134, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

3. The Citibank Line Of Credit

135.  Answering Paragraph 135, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
136. Answering Paragraph 136, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

4. The Trump Place Luxury Condominium

137.  Answering Paragraph 137, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

5. Q Burke Mountain Resort

138.  Answering Paragraph 138, Quiros denies the allegations therein, except admits that
Q Burke owns the Q Burke resort, which is a Vermont ski resort.

6. Misrepresentations To The State Of Vermont

139.  Answering Paragraph 139, Quiros refers to the alleged documents provided to the
State of Vermont for their contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 139.
140.  Answering Paragraph 140, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
D. The Status Of Biomedical Phase V11
141.  Answering Paragraph 141, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
142.  Answering Paragraph 142, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
X. THE DEFENDANT S’ CONTINUE D FUNDRAISING

143.  Answering Paragraph 143, Quiros denies the allegations therein.
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144.  Answering Paragraph 144, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

145.  Answering Paragraph 145, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

146. Answering Paragraph 146, Quiros denies the allegations of the first and fourth
sentences and lacks sufficient knowledge or information to form a belief as to the truth of the
remaining allegations of Paragraph 146.

147. Answering Paragraph 147, Quiros refers to the revised offering documents for their
contents and otherwise denies the allegations of Paragraph 147.

148.  Answering Paragraph 148, Quiros denies the allegations therein.

XL CLAIMS FORRELIEF

SUITES PHASE 1
COUNT1
tion 17(a)(1) of th rities Act

(Against Suites I, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

149.  Answering Paragraph 149, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

150.  Answering Paragraph 150, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

151.  Answering Paragraph 151, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 2

Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act
(Against Suites Phase I, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

152.  Answering Paragraph 152, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

153.  Answering Paragraph 153, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
17
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require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
154.  Answering Paragraph 154, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 3

tion 1 nd Rule 10b- f the Exchange Act
(Against Suites Phase I, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

155.  Answering Paragraph 155, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
156.  Answering Paragraph 156, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
157.  Answering Paragraph 157, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 4

tion 1 nd Rule 10b- f the Exchange Act
(Against Suites Phase I, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

158.  Answering Paragraph 158, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

159.  Answering Paragraph 159, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

160.  Answering Paragraph 160, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 5

tion 2 — Control Person Liabilit
Against Suites Phase | and Jay Peak Management’s Violations Of The Exchange Act
(Against Quiros)

161. Answering Paragraph 161, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

162.  Answering Paragraph 162, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

163. Answering Paragraph 163, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

164. Answering Paragraph 164, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

165. Answering Paragraph 165, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

HOTEL PHASE 11
COUNT 6

Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act

(Against Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,
Quiros, and Stenger)

166. Answering Paragraph 166, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

167. Answering Paragraph 167, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

168. Answering Paragraph 168, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 7

Section 17(a)(2) of the Securities Act
(Against Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,

Quiros, and Stenger)
169. Answering Paragraph 169, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-17, 28-98, 115 and 142-
148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
170.  Answering Paragraph 170, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
171.  Answering Paragraph 171, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 8

Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act
(Against Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,

Quiros, and Stenger)
172.  Answering Paragraph 172, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
173.  Answering Paragraph 173, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
174.  Answering Paragraph 174, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 9

tion 1 nd Rule 10b- f the Exchange Act
(Against Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,
Quiros, and Stenger)

175.  Answering Paragraph 175, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

176.  Answering Paragraph 176, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
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require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
177.  Answering Paragraph 177, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 10

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) of the Exchange Act
(Against Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak and Stenger)

178.  Answering Paragraph 178, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-17, 28-98, 115 and 142-
148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
COUNT 11
Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(c) of the Exchange Act

(Against Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,
Quiros, and Stenger)

181. Answering Paragraph 181, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

182.  Answering Paragraph 182, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

183.  Answering Paragraph 183, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 12

Section 20(a) — Control Person Liability
For Hotel Phase 11 and Jay Peak Management’s Violations Of The Exchange Act

(Against Quiros)
184.  Answering Paragraph 184, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
185.  Answering Paragraph 185, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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186. Answering Paragraph 186, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

187.  Answering Paragraph 187, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

188.  Answering Paragraph 188, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 13
Aiding and Abetting Hotel Phase 11, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak and Stenger’s

Violations Of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) of the Exchange Act
(Against Quiros and Q Resorts)

189.  Answering Paragraph 189, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-17, 28-98, 115 and 142-
148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

190. Answering Paragraph 190, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

191.  Answering Paragraph 191, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

192.  Answering Paragraph 192, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

PENTHOUSE PHASE 11
COUNT 14
tion 17(a)(1) of th rities Act
(Against Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak GP Services, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,
Quiros, and Stenger)

193.  Answering Paragraph 193, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if

fully set forth herein.
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194.  Answering Paragraph 194, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

195.  Answering Paragraph 195, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 15

Section 17(a)(2) of the Securities Act
(Against Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak GP Services, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,

Quiros, and Stenger)
196. Answering Paragraph 196, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 18-19, 28-56, 78-95,
99-102, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
197.  Answering Paragraph 197, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
198.  Answering Paragraph 198, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 16

Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act
(Against Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak GP Services, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,
Quiros, and Stenger)

199.  Answering Paragraph 199, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

200.  Answering Paragraph 200, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

201. Answering Paragraph 201, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 17

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a) of the Exchange Act
(Against Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak GP Services, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,
Quiros, and Stenger)

202.  Answering Paragraph 202, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
203.  Answering Paragraph 203, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
204.  Answering Paragraph 204, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 18

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) of the Exchange Act
(Against Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak Management, Jay Peak and Stenger)

205.  Answering Paragraph 205, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 18-19, 28-56, 78-95,
99-102, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

206.  Answering Paragraph 206, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

207.  Answering Paragraph 207, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 19

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(c) of the Exchange Act
(Against Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak GP Services, Jay Peak, Q Resorts,

Quiros, and Stenger)
208.  Answering Paragraph 208, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

209. Answering Paragraph 209, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
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require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
210. Answering Paragraph 210, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 20

Section 20(a) — Control Person Liability
For Penthouse Phase 111 and Jay Peak GP Services’ Violations Of The Exchange Act

(Against Quiros)
211.  Answering Paragraph 211, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
212.  Answering Paragraph 212, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
213.  Answering Paragraph 213, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
214.  Answering Paragraph 214, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
215.  Answering Paragraph 215, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 21
Aiding and Abetting Penthouse Phase 111, Jay Peak GP Services, Jay Peak and Stenger’s

Violations Of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5(b)
(Against Quiros and Q Resorts)

216. Answering Paragraph 216, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 18-19, 28-56, 78-95,
99-102, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
217. Answering Paragraph 217, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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218.  Answering Paragraph 218, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
219.  Answering Paragraph 219, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
GOLE AND MOUNTAIN PHASE IV

COUNT 22

Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act
(Against Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
220. Answering Paragraph 220, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
221. Answering Paragraph 221, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
222.  Answering Paragraph 222, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 23
Section 17(a)(2) of the Securities Act
(Against Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
223.  Answering Paragraph 223, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 20-21, 28-56, 78-95,
103-106, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
224.  Answering Paragraph 224, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

225.  Answering Paragraph 225, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 24

Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act
(Against Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
226. Answering Paragraph 226, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
227.  Answering Paragraph 227, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
228.  Answering Paragraph 228, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 25

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a) of the Exchange Act
(Against Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros and Stenger)

229.  Answering Paragraph 229, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

230.  Answering Paragraph 230, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

231.  Answering Paragraph 231, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein..

COUNT 26

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) of the Exchange Act
(Against Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak, and Stenger)

232.  Answering Paragraph 232, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 20-21, 28-56, 78-95,
103-106, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

233.  Answering Paragraph 233, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
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require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
234.  Answering Paragraph 234, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 27

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(c) of the Exchange Act
(Against Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros and Stenger)
235.  Answering Paragraph 235, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
236. Answering Paragraph 236, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
237.  Answering Paragraph 237, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 28

Section 20(a) — Control Person Liability
For Golf and Mountain Phase 1V and Jay Peak GP Services Golf’s Violations Of

The Exchange Act (Against Quiros)

238.  Answering Paragraph 238, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

239.  Answering Paragraph 239, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

240.  Answering Paragraph 240, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

241. Answering Paragraph 241, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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242.  Answering Paragraph 242, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 29
Aiding and Abetting Golf and Mountain Phase 1V, Jay Peak GP Services Golf, Jay Peak

and Stenger’s Violations Of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5(b)
(Against Quiros and Q Resorts)

243.  Answering Paragraph 243, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 20-21, 28-56, 78-95,
103-106, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
244.  Answering Paragraph 244, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
245.  Answering Paragraph 245, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
246. Answering Paragraph 246, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
LODGE AND TOWNHOUSES PHASE V
COUNT 30
Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act
(Against Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services Lodge, Jay Peak, Q
Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
247.  Answering Paragraph 247, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
248.  Answering Paragraph 248, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

249.  Answering Paragraph 249, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 31

Section 17(a)(2) of the Securities Act
(Against Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services Lodge, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
250.  Answering Paragraph 250, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 22-23, 28-56, 78-95,
107-110, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
251.  Answering Paragraph 251, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
252.  Answering Paragraph 252, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 32
Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act

(Against Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services Lodge, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

253.  Answering Paragraph 253, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

254.  Answering Paragraph 254, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

255.  Answering Paragraph 255, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 33
Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a) of the Exchange Act

(Against Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services Lodge, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

256.  Answering Paragraph 256, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if

fully set forth herein.
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257.  Answering Paragraph 257, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

258.  Answering Paragraph 258, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 34

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) of the Exchange Act
(Against Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services Lodge,

Jay Peak, and Stenger)

259.  Answering Paragraph 259, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 22-23, 28-56, 78-95,
107-110, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

260. Answering Paragraph 260, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

261. Answering Paragraph 261, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 35
Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(c) of the Exchange Act

(Against Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services Lodge, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

262. Answering Paragraph 262, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

263.  Answering Paragraph 263, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

264.  Answering Paragraph 264, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 36

Section 20(a) — Control Person Liability
For Lodge and Townhouses Phase V and Jay Peak GP Services Lodge’s Violations Of
The Exchange Act (Against Quiros)

265.  Answering Paragraph 265, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

266. Answering Paragraph 266, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

267. Answering Paragraph 267, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

268.  Answering Paragraph 268, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

269.  Answering Paragraph 269, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein

COUNT 37
Aiding and Abetting Lodge and Townhouses Phase V, Jay Peak GP Services L odge, Jay

Peak and Stenger’s Violations Of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5(b)
(Against Quiros and Q Resorts)

270.  Answering Paragraph 270, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 22-23, 28-56, 78-95,
107-110, 115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

271.  Answering Paragraph 271, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

272. Answering Paragraph 272, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

273.  Answering Paragraph 273, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
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require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
STATESIDE PHASE VI

COUNT 38

Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act

(Against Stateside Phase VI, Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

274.  Answering Paragraph 274, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

275.  Answering Paragraph 275, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

276.  Answering Paragraph 276, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 39

Section 17(a)(2) of the Securities Act
(Against Stateside Phase VI, Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
277. Answering Paragraph 277, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 24-25, 28-56, 78-95,
111-115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
278.  Answering Paragraph 278, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
279.  Answering Paragraph 279, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 40

Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act
(Against Stateside Phase VI, Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
280. Answering Paragraph 280, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
281. Answering Paragraph 281, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
282. Answering Paragraph 282, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 41

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a) of the Exchange Act
(Against Stateside Phase VI, Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

283.  Answering Paragraph 283, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

284.  Answering Paragraph 284, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

285.  Answering Paragraph 285, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 42

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) of the Exchange Act
(Against Stateside Phase VI, Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Jay Peak, and Stenger)

286. Answering Paragraph 286, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 24-25, 28-56, 78-95,
111-115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

287.  Answering Paragraph 287, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
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require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
288. Answering Paragraph 288, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 43

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(c) of the Exchange Act

(Against Stateside Phase VI, Jay Peak GP Services Stateside, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

289.  Answering Paragraph 289, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

290. Answering Paragraph 290, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

291. Answering Paragraph 291, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 44

Section 20(a) — Control Person Liability
(Against Stateside Phase VI and Jay Peak GP Services Stateside’s Violations Of

The Exchange Act (Against Quiros)

292. Answering Paragraph 292, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

293.  Answering Paragraph 293, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

294.  Answering Paragraph 294, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

295.  Answering Paragraph 295, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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296. Answering Paragraph 296, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 45
Aiding and Abetting Stateside and Jay Peak GP Services Stateside’s Violations Of

Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5(b)
(Against Quiros and Q Resorts)

297.  Answering Paragraph 297, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 24-25, 28-56, 78-95,
111-115, and 142-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

298.  Answering Paragraph 298, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

299. Answering Paragraph 299, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

300. Answering Paragraph 300, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
BIOMEDICAL PHASE VI

COUNT 46

Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act
(Against Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
301. Answering Paragraph 301, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
302. Answering Paragraph 302, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
303. Answering Paragraph 303, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 47

Section 17(a)(2) of the Securities Act
(Against Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
304.  Answering Paragraph 304, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 24-25, 26-56, 78-95,
115-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.
305.  Answering Paragraph 305, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
306. Answering Paragraph 306, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 48

Section 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act

(Against Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

307. Answering Paragraph 307, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

308. Answering Paragraph 308, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

309. Answering Paragraph 309, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 49

Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a) of the Exchange Act
(Against Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, Jay Peak,

Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)
310.  Answering Paragraph 310, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.
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311.  Answering Paragraph 311, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

312. Answering Paragraph 312, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
COUNT 50
ion1 nd Rule 10b- f the Exchange A
(Against Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, Jay Peak,
Quiros, and Stenger)

313.  Answering Paragraph 313, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 26-56, 78-95, and
115-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

314.  Answering Paragraph 314, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

315.  Answering Paragraph 315, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

COUNT 51
tion 1 nd Rule 10b- f the Exchange Act
(Against Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, Jay Peak,
Q Resorts, Quiros, and Stenger)

316. Answering Paragraph 316, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-148 of his Answer as if
fully set forth herein.

317. Answering Paragraph 317, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

318.  Answering Paragraph 318, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not

require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.
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COUNT 52

Aiding and Abetting Biomedical Phase VII, AnC Bio Vermont GP Services, and Quiros’
Violations Of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5(b)
(Against Q Resorts)

319. Answering Paragraph 319, Quiros realleges Paragraphs 1-14, 26-56, 78-95, and
115-148 of his Answer as if fully set forth herein.

320. Answering Paragraph 320, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

321. Answering Paragraph 321, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

322.  Answering Paragraph 322, Quiros avers that it is a legal conclusion that does not
require a response, and otherwise denies the allegations therein.

X1l RELIEF REQUESTED

As to the relief requested by the SEC, Quiros denies that the SEC is entitled to any relief
whatsoever, and further denies any allegations therein.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

As separate and distinct affirmative defenses to the SEC’s alleged claims for relief,
Defendant Quiros alleges the following without admission that such allegations are affirmative

defenses on which Defendant Quiros bears the burden of proof:

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Statute of Limitations)

The SEC’s claims are barred in whole or in part by the applicable statutes of limitation,
including, but not limited to, the five-year statute of limitations set forth in 28 U.S.C. §2462, which
applies to the SEC’s civil penalty claims.
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SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Reliance on Advice of Professionals)

Defendant Quiros is not liable in whole or in part because he relied in good faith upon the
information, opinions, reports, or statements prepared or presented by one or more professionals,
including attorneys, accountants, and financial services providers, and, therefore, lacked scienter

and acted in good faith.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Contribution and/or Set-Off)

Defendant Quiros is entitled to receive contribution from others and/or a set-off against the
claims asserted in the Amended Complaint because the claims are based, in whole or in part, on
alleged losses to purported victims whose alleged losses were caused by others, including financial
services providers, accountants, and professionals, and whose alleged losses have been repaid in

whole or in part by Defendant Quiros and others.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Quiros hereby demands a trial by jury for all issues so triable.

Respectfully Submitted,

DAMIAN & VALORI LLP

1000 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1020
Miami, Florida 33131

Telephone: 305-371-3960
Facsimile: 305-371-3965

/sl Melissa D. Visconti

Melissa Damian Visconti

Florida Bar No. 0068063

Email: mviscontimailto:@dvllp.com

Melanie E. Damian
Florida Bar No. 99392
Email; mdamian@dvllp.com
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ERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
| HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Second Amend Answer
to Amended Complaint for Injunctive and Other Relief has been served via e-mail via CM/ECF,

onthis __ day of June, 2017, to all counsel of record.

/s Melissa Damian Visconti
Melissa Damian Visconti
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 16-CV-21301-GAYLES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
V.

ARIEL QUIROS,

WILLIAM

STENGER, JAY

PEAK, INC.,

Q RESORTS, INC.,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES L.P.,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES PHASE II

L.P., JAY PEAK MANAGEMENT, INC.,

JAY PEAK PENTHOUSE SUITES

L.P., JAY PEAK GP SERVICES,

INC.,

JAY PEAK GOLF AND MOUNTAIN SUITES
L.P., JAY PEAK GP SERVICES GOLF, INC,,
JAY PEAK LODGE AND TOWNHOUSES
L.P., JAY PEAK GP SERVICES LODGE,
INC.,

JAY PEAK HOTEL SUITES STATESIDE
L.P., JAY PEAK GP SERVICES
STATESIDE, INC,,

JAY PEAK BIOMEDICAL RESEARCH PARK
L.P., AnC BIO VERMONT GP SERVICES, LLC,

Defendants,

and
JAY CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT,
INC., GSI OF DADE COUNTY, INC,,
NORTH EAST CONTRACT SERVICES,
INC., Q BURKE MOUNTAIN RESORT,
LLC,

Relief Defendants.
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ORDER GRANTING
DEFENDANT ARIEL QUIROS’S UNOPPOSED SECOND MOTION
FOR LEAVE TO AMEND ANSWER AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

THIS CAUSE is before the Court on Defendant Ariel Quiros’s (“Defendant™) Unopposed
Second Motion for Leave to Amend his Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Amended
Complaint, filed June 9, 2017 (ECF #--).

THIS COURT has considered the Motion and the pertinent portions of the record, and,
having considered that the Motion is Unopposed and being otherwise fully advised in the
premises, it is hereby

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Defendant’s Unopposed Second Motion for Leave to
Amend Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Amended Complaint is GRANTED. It is further

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Defendant’s Second Amended Answer and
Affirmative Defenses to the Amended Complaint attached to Defendant’s Motion is deemed filed
as of the date of this Order. Plaintiff shall respond within the time permitted by the Federal and
Local Rules. It is further

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Defendant Quiros’s
Affirmative Defenses (ECF #278) is DENIED AS MOOQOT.

DONE AND ORDERED this day of , 2017, in Miami, Florida.

DARRIN P. GAYLES
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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